AD-777 772

ALL AT

Q

## EVALUATION BY A MODIFIED CYLINDER TEST OF METAL ACCELERATION BY NON-IDEAL EXPLOSIVES CONTAINING AMMONIUM NITRATE

J. Hershkowitz, et al

Picatinny Arsenal Dover, New Jersey

April 1974

**DISTRIBUTED BY:** 

National Technical Information Service U. S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 5285 Port Royal Road, Springfield Va. 22151

REPORT DOCUMENTAT	ION PAGE	READ INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING FORM
. REPORT NUMBER	2. GOVT ACCESSION NO.	3. RECIPIENT'S CATALOG NUMBER
Technical Report 4611		AD 177772
. TITLE (and Subtitio)		5. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVERE
EVALUATION BY A MODIFIED C	YLINDER TEST OF	
METAL ACCELERATION BY NON-	-IDEAL EXPLOSIVES	
CO'ITAINING AMMONIUM NITRAT	re	6. PERFORMING ORG. REPORT NUMBER
AUTHOR(.)		B. CONTRACT OR GRANT NUMBER(+)
J. Hershkowitz, Explosives Div	ision, FRL	
J. Rigdon, Pantex Plant, Mason	§ Hanger	
Silas Mason Co. In PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND ADD	C	10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK
		AREA 4 WORK UNIT NUMBERS
Picatinny Arsenal		AMCMS Code
Dover, N. J. 07801		662603.11.50900
1. CONTROLI.ING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRESS		12. REPORT DATE APRIL 1974
		13. NUMBER OF PAGES
4. MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(11 d	liferent from Controlling Office)	15. SECURITY CLASS, (of this report
		UNCLASSIFIED
		154. DECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING
6. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public release; di 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the observect or	stribution unlimited.	m Report)
6. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public release; di 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstract of	stribution unlimited.	n Roport)
6. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report) Approved for public release; di 7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the observect or 8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES Repro	stribution unlimited.	m Report)
6. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report)     Approved for public release; di     7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstract of     8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES     Repro     N     IN     IN	stribution unlimited.	n Ropori)
6. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report)     Approved for public release; di     7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstract of     8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES     Repro     N     IN     U	stribution unlimited.	m Report)
Approved for public release; di     Approved for public release; di     DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstract of     USTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstract of     SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES     Repro     N     IN     U     KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse eide if necess     Explosive, Amatex, Ammonium     Computer explosive, Cylinder (     acceleration	stribution unlimited.	m Report) plosive, Composite explosive ity, Explosive metal
6. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report)     Approved for public release; di     7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstract of     8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES     Repro     N     N     N     U      KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde if necess     Explosive, Amatex, Ammonium     Computer explosive, Cylinder f     acceleration      ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse elde if necess	stribution unlimited. Alered in Block 20, if different from ATIONAL TECHNICAL FORMATION SERVICE S Department of Commerce Springited VA 22151 Pary and Identify by block number) nitrate, Non-Ideal ex test, Detonation veloc	n Report) plosive, Composite explosive ity, Explosive metal
6. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report)     Approved for public release; di     7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstract of     8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES     Report     N     IN     U     KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde if necess     Explosive, Amatex, Ammonium     Computer explosive, Cylinder (     acceleration     ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse elde if necess     Cylinder tests have been d	stribution unlimited. Attend in Block 20, it different from Attonal TECHNICAL FORMATION SERVICE S Department of Commerce Springfield VA 22151 Sery and Identify by block number) nitrate, Non-Ideal ex test, Detonation veloc	plosive, Composite explosive ity, Explosive metal
Approved for public release; di     Approved for public release; di     DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstract of     SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES     Repro     N     IN     U      KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if necess     Explosive, Amatex, Ammonium     Computer explosive, Cylinder (     acceleration     ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if necess     Cylinder tests have been d     tution of ammonium nitrate (AN)	stribution unlimited.	plosive, Composite explosive ity, Explosive metal ed to study the effect of substi-
6. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report)     Approved for public release; di     7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the obstract of     8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES     Repro     N     N     N     U      KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elds if necess     Explosive, Amatex, Ammonium     Computer explosive, Cylinder (     acceleration     ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse elds if necess     Cylinder tests have been d     tution of ammonium nitrate (AN)     Sources, to arrive at an appropri	stribution unlimited.	ed to study the effect of substrange of particle sizes and r tests for non-ideal explosive
<ul> <li>6. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of this Report)</li> <li>Approved for public release; di</li> <li>7. DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the observed of N</li> <li>8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES</li> <li>8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES</li> <li>8. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES</li> <li>9. KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse elde if necession Explosive, Amatex, Ammonium Computer explosive, Cylinder to acceleration</li> <li>8. ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse elde if necession Cylinder tests have been of tution of ammonium nitrate (AN) sources, to arrive at an appropriand to provide a basis for studyi sives./ Substitution of 20 and 4C p</li> </ul>	stribution unlimited. Attend in Block 20, it different from aduced by ATIONAL TECHNICAL FORMATION SERVICE S Department of Commerce Springfield VA 22151 For and identify by block number) nitrate, Non-Ideal ex test, Detonation veloc ary and identify by block number) lesigned and conducted for RDX in a limited x late design of cylinde ing the basic mechanis parts of AN for RDX in	en Report) plosive, Composite explosive ity, Explosive metal ed to study the effect of substi- range of particle sizes and r tests for non-ideal explosive sms of these non-ideal explo- n Cyclotol 60/40 (i.e., Amate
Approved for public release; di     Approved for public release; di     Approved for public release; di     SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES     Repro     N     SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES     Repro     N     N     U      KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if necess     Explosive, Amatex, Ammonium     Computer explosive, Cylinder (     acceleration     ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if necess         Cylinder tests have been d     tution of ammonium nitrate (AN)     sources, to arrive at an appropri     and to provide a basis for studyi     sives./ Substitution of 20 and 40     40/40/20 and 20/40/10, RDX/TNT	stribution unlimited.	er Report) plosive, Composite explosive ity, Explosive metal ed to study the effect of substi- range of particle sizes and r tests for non-ideal explosive sms of these non-ideal explosive sms of these non-ideal explo- n Cyclotol 60/40 (i.e., Amate to reduction of datonation
<ul> <li>Approved for public release; di</li> <li>Approved for public release; di</li> <li>DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abetract of DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abetract of N IN U </li> <li>SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES Reprovide a construction of the sector of the sector of Reprovide a basis for studyi sives./ Substitution of 20 and 4C j 40/40/20 and 20/40/10, RDX/TNT velocity th 95% and 88.7% respect</li></ul>	stribution unlimited. Attered in Block 20, it different from adduced by ATIONAL TECHNICAL FORMATION SERVICE S Department of Commerce Springfield VA 22151 Stry and identify by block number) nitrate, Non-Ideal ex test, Detonation veloc any and identify by block number) lesigned and conducted for RDX in a limited x late design of cylinder ing the basic mechanics parts of AN for RDX in C/AN by weight) led to ively and to 92% and for	en Report) plosive, Composite explosive ity, Explosive metal ed to study the effect of substi- range of particle sizes and r tests for non-ideal explosive sms of these non-ideal explosive sms of these non-ideal explo- n Cyclotol 60/40 (i.e., Amate to reduction of datonation 14.5% for the kinetic energy
<ul> <li>Approved for public release; di</li> <li>Approved for public release; di</li> <li>DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abstract of SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES         Reprosent SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES         Reprosent Supplementary notes         Reprosent Supplementary notes         Reprosent Supplementary notes         Reprosent Reprosent N         IN         IN</li></ul>	stribution unlimited.	en Report) plosive, Composite explosive ity, Explosive metal ed to study the effect of substi- range of particle sizes and r tests for non-ideal explosive sms of these non-ideal explo- n Cyclotol 60/40 (i.e., Amate to reduction of datonation 34.5% for the kinetic energy LASSIFIED

.

-

4

こううちまた 日日日子

ころの ちょうかいかい ちょうちょう ちょう

## 20. Abstract (Cont'd)

imparted to the metal wall for seven-fold explosive expansion from solid state. No particle size effect was found for Amatex 40/40/20; a slight effect may be present for Amatex 20/40/40. Recommendations were made for cylinder tests for non-ideal explosives with respect to length, diameter, wall thicknesses and material, pin mounting and spacings, optimum use of streak and framing camera, auxiliary measurements, explosive loading, safety, and necessary controls. The ratio of thin-wall to thick-wall velocity at corresponding wall displacements was essentially the same for the Amatex compositions as for the Cyclotol. This led to the conclusion that energy release in Amatex occurs prior to cylinder wall motion and is not altered thereafter. The significance of this observation for the non-ideality mechanism and further studies is discussed.

in

UNCLASSIFIED SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE(Then Date B

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

4

	Page No.
Abstract	1
Introduction	2
Procedures	4
Cylinder Test Configuration	4
Conner Culinders	10
Explosives	10
Loading of Cylinders with Explosives Controls	14 15
Safety Considerations Experimental Arrangement at Field Site	17 20
Results	22
Pin Data	22
Radial Expansion of Cylinder Slit Position	28
Effect of Parameters on Cylinder Expansion	31
Cylinder Wall Deformation and Rupture	37
Wave-Front Profiles	38
Computer Program Predictions	41
Discussion	41
Design of Cylinder Test for Non-Ideal Explosives	41
Non-Ideal Explosives Containing Ammonium Nitrate	48
Significance of Results for Other Ongoing Programs	50
Future Work	49
Acknowledgements	51
References	52
Distribution List	55

'n

## Tables

-,

Γ

1	Ratio of explosive mass (C) to metal mass (M) for munitions and cylinder test configurations	5
2	Plan of tests	9
3	RDX particle size distribution in Cyclotol 60/40 (HOL-SR-90-59) material	12
4	Particle size distributions	13
5	Knoop microhardness and Rockwell F (R <sub>F</sub> ) hardness for copper tubes	16
6	Cyclotol composition and density measurements	18
7	Amatex composition and density measurements	19
8	A typical set of pin data	23
9	Propagation velocities (mm/ $\mu$ sec) calculated from Table 8	24
10	Proprigation velocities (m/sec) and deviation $(N = 6)$ from pin data	25
11	Detonation velocities and pin measurement standard deviation (N = 6) at slit position	27
12	Cylinder expansion data for thick-wall cylinders	52
13	Cylinder expansion data for thin-wall cylinders	33
14	Relative energy (%) in copper for equal initial explosive volume referred to Cyclotol 60/40 (RDX/TNT)	35
15	Ratios of wall velocity squared for thin- to thick-wall cylinders with the same explosive	36
16	Estimated cost of non-ideal explosive cylindør test	49

.

Ş

## Figures

ļ

-

1	Nominal positions of slit and pins used for cylinder test of Cyclotol 60/40	6
2	Nominal positions of slit and pins used for cylinder test of Amatex 40 and 20	7
3	Cylinder test arrangement at firing site	21
4	Streak photo obtained from cylinder test	29
5	Framing camera photos of cylinder expansion (thick wall - left side; thin wall - right side; upper right - experimental arrangement)	39
6	Streak records of propagation wave breakout from end of explosive cylinders for various conditions (see Table 2)	40

Ę

ŕ

「「「「「「」」

3

\*\*\*

-----

. . . .

IV

## INTRODUCTION

The metal accelerating ability of a variety of fast-reacting and composite explosives has been measured by means of cylinder tests (Ref 1-6). The essence of the cylinder test as first proposed by Lawrence Livermore Laboratory (Ref 1) is to use a one-inch-diameter, twelve-inch-long cylinder of explosive confined within a copper cylinder of the same length with a wall thickness of 0.1022 inch. The explosive is initiated at one end and the detonation wave propagates down the cylinder, causing the cylinder wall to expand. This expansion is measured by means of a streak camera in a plane perpendicular to the cylinder axis at a position about 7 to 9 inches from the initiation plane. The velocity of the expanding metal wall at the position where the explosive has expanded seven-fold with respect to its initial volume is used for a comparison of kipetic energy imparted to the metal by different explosives. Results are also obtained for larger diameters to study scaling where appropriate. It has also been shown (Ref 1) that calculations for ideal explosives with TIGER (or an equivalent computer program) of the energy change to the seven-fold point on the expansion isentrope provides the same relative measure of explosive performance as cylinder tests.

The objectives of the program described in this report were twofold. The first objective was to design and evaluate a test configuration appropriate to measuring the metal acceleration with non-ideal explosives. A non-ideal explosive is one for which the product species at the end of the steady state detonation zone are not those of thermodynamic equilibrium based on the elemental composition of the explosive. Rate-dependent phenomena in these explosives require test design consideration of nonscaling, run-up distance, diameter effect, and enhanced role of rarefaction waves.

The second objective was to choose a non-ideal explosive medium which was of current interest to use for developing this cylinder test and simultaneously to carry out a plan of tests for evaluating the effect on performance of parameters of the explosive.

The role of the cylinder test for prediction of performance of explosives in munitions with respect to metal accelerating ability may be understood in terms of the diagram shown below.

## Preceding page blank



## METAL ACCELERATION IN MUNITIONS APPLICATIONS

Cylinder tests provide information for direct (downward arrow) comparison of explosives. The upward arrow indicates that the results of these tests also provide a means for calibrating an appropriate equation of state description of an explosive by using a two-dimensional wave propagation computer program such as HEMP (Ref 7) to predict the expansion of the cylinder and comparing these predictions with the results of the cylinder test (left loop). Verification of the derived explosive description in other situations such as with a different wall thickness serves to determine the domain of application of that explosive description. Cylinder tests can also be used (right loop) for comparison with the results of TIGER calculations of the change in energy from initial to final state along an isentrope for different explosives. This determines the validity of the use of TIGER for relarankings of explosives. These comparisons lead to predictions as to explosive performance when metal acceleration is the significant feature of munition applications. For the non-ideal explosives the cylinder test results have the additional important role of serving as a testing ground for hypotheses on the nature of the non-ideality. This report provides the experimental procedures and detailed results to involved scientists for use in this regard.

The reader will find it of value to refer to the Table of Contents to satisfy his particular interests on a first reading. Note that the results pertaining to the two objectives of this program are separately treated in the DISCUSSION.

## PROCEDURES

## Cylinder Test Configuration

Since ammonium nitrate containing non-ideal explosives would be expected to have a strong dependence on diameter in the one-to two-inchdiameter range and munitions containing non-ideal explosives would generally be larger than two inches in diameter, the cylinder test configuration was chosen to have a four-inch-diameter explosive charge. The copper wall thickness was scaled to 0.4 inch to be appropriate to this explosive charge diameter. However, since it was not readily feasible to provide a still larger diameter (e.g., 8 inches) to test the effect of scaling and since it was desired, as noted previously, to establish the range of validity of an explosive description deduced from a cylinder test, a second wall thickness half the previous (i.e., 0.2 inch) was included as an additional cylinder test. The two wall thicknesses represent two separate points on a scale of charge-to-mass ratios used in munitions (Table 1). The two values allow the limited extrapolation of these cylinder test results to the charge-to-mass ratio appropriate to the munition of interest.

In recognition of the need for a longer distance for a non-ideal explosive to establish a steady state detonation and the need for a longer disturbance-free expansion time because of the slower wall motion the overall cylinder length was increased from twelve to thirty-six inches. The location of contact pins for monitoring the run-up of the wave front and for measuring the velocity over the region where the radial expansion was measured by a slit camera are shown in Figures 1 and 2. The choice of slit position is intended to provide the longest possible expansion time free of rarefaction from either end. The far end of the explosive charge provided an opportunity to observe the emergent curvature of the wave front by using a second slit. (The DISCUSSION Section treats other possible design features for cylinder tests of non-ideal explosives.) Initiation was by a plane wave generator operating through a two-inch-thick Comp B booster (RDX/TNT 60/40 with 1% wax added) confined in a copper sleeve matching that of the cylinder wall. The end of the explosive cylinder closest to the riser (pouring end) was initiated by the booster so that the slit would be in the region of highest quality.

## Table 1

lî

ę

1. M.L.

, . . . . .

1

## Ratio of explosive mass (C) to metal mass (M) for munitions and cylinder test configurations

Munition	Explosive (lb)	Metal (1b) Less Fuze	C/M Ratio
60 MM Mortar	0.46	1.59	0.29
81 MM Mortar	2.03	5.12	0.40
105 MM Shell	4.60	25,60	0.18
155 MM Shell	15.4	77.80	0.20
175 MM Shell	31.0	113.8	0.27
500 Lb Bomb	192	308	0.62
750 Lb Bomb	380	355	1.07

## Cylinder Test Values of C/M for RDX/TNT/AN Compositions

	Cyclotol <u>60/40/0</u>	Amatex 40/40/20	Amatex 20/40/40
Thick Wall (scaled to standard			
LLL test)	0.418	C.403	0.391
Thin Wall (1/2 of standard)	0.836	0.807	0.783







Ĩ



- ----

粘

: -

Ş

1

7

J

## Plan of Tests

Amatex explosives substitute ammonium nitrate for RDX in Cyclotol 60/40 RDX/TNT (by weight). The effect on metal accelerating ability of this substitution was studied in two steps: Amatex 40, RDX/TNT/AN (40/40/20) and Amatex 20 (20/40/40). This variation in composition is the ordinate in the plan of testo shown in Table 2. Another factor considered of great importance with respect to non-ideal explosives is the particle size distribution of the ingredients, which is here varied along the abscisse in three steps. In eduction, two types of ammonium nitrate, designated T and C (further datails are unceptions shown here.

The numbers within the test plan were assigned to each pair of cylinder tests (thick and this wall) with the indicated combination of parameters. The wort plan persity file following series of comparisons with respect to the parameters involved.

a. 7 vs 2 shows reproducibility of results for the same condition for both while well and thus wall cylinders.

b. I as if the weather the core emmonium nitrate substitution for RDX with 1,2 as reference.

c. 4 and 8 show the same effect for medium ammonium nitrate.

d. 9 shows the effect of fine an monium nitrate only for one step in substitution for RDX. Additional ammonium nitrate could not be used because of the viscosity finitation for casting of Amatex 20.

8. 5, 6 are repeats of 4, 9 but use a different ammonium nitrate as source.

f. 7, 8, 9 and 6 (if the same as 9) provide a measure of the effect of progressive increase in surface area of ammonium nitrate in Amatex 40.

g. 3, 4 and 5 (if the same as 4) provide a measure of progressive increase in surface area of ammonium nitrate for Amatex 20.

h. Comparison in each case of thick-wall and thin-wall copper cylinder results provides a measure of the role of confinement on metal acceleration.

## Table 2

Ĩ

4

٢

. . . . .

च्यु

ļ

「日本」でいたをうまい とう あっちちちょう

R . . .

## Plan of tests\*

RDX/TNT/AN		Ammonium I <u>Coarse</u>	Nitrate Particle Medium	Size Fraction Fine
60/40/0	1,2			
40/40/20		71	8 <b>T</b>	9T 6C
20/40/40		3 <b>T</b>	4T 5C	

\*Each number represents a pair of tests one with a thick wall and one with a thin wall cylinder. The letters T and C refer to ammonium nitrate sources (see text) i. There are second-order interaction effects between the above enumerated factors.

## **Copper Cylinders**

ľ

In order to obtain the copper cylinders it was necessary to have a mill run made by a copper manufacturer of oversize tubes and to machine the final cylinders to the desired dimensions from these.

The specification used for purchase of the oversize tubes is outlined below.

Material	Oxygen-free high-conductivity (OFHC) elec- tronic grade certified.
Treatment	Hard drawn, relief annealed to finish dimensions.
Length	40" + 1.00 - J.00.
Camber	Maximum deviation from straight line of any and entire length of inside or outside 0.0625".
ID	3.75" <u>+</u> 0.01.
Out of round	0.020" maximum.
<u>OD</u>	5.0" <u>+</u> 0.91.
Eccentricity re ID	<u>+</u> 0.050".
<u>Transport</u>	Wrapped and padded to prevent damage. Packed 4 to a box with wood separators, using minimum $3/4^{\mu}$ lumber.

ų

A total of 43 such tubes were furnished at a price of 6476 (18 were used for the tests reported here).

The samples were then machined to final dimensions in accordance with the specification outlined below.

Length	$36 \pm 0.06"$ .
Thick-wall cylinders	ID 4.00 $\pm$ 0.004"; OD 4.820 $\pm$ 0.004".
Thin-wall cylinders	ID 4.00 ± .004"; OD 4.428 ± .004".
Hole	Straight within .008 over entire range.
Anneal	Non-oxidizing atmosphere after rough machin- ing and at any other occasion.
Final <u>hardness</u>	50 Rockwell scale "F" maximum (with finished sizes).
<u>Finish</u>	16 finish called for on both the inside and out- side and a 63 finish on the ends.

The cost of machining was \$16,017.50 (for 21 thin wall cylinders and 22 thick wall cylinders). Nine of each were used for this series of tests.

Each cylinder was given an identification number and the end pieces cut off in machining were marked with the number. These end pieces were used for metallurgical controls and to provide a 2" length to confine each Comp B booster.

## Explosives

An analysis of the Cyclotol 60/40 used, lot number HOL-SR-90-59, showed that the percentage ratio RDX/TNT by weight was 60.77/39.29. The TNT lot used for this composition by Holeton Ordnance Works was VOL-1-2790. The RDX used was nominally Class A. The particle size distribution determined from the Cyclotol as furnished by Holeton is shown in Table 3.

**V** 

## TABLE 3

RDX particle size distribution in Cyclotol 60/40 (HOL-SR-90-59) material\*

US Standard Sieve	Sieve Opening (µ)	Cumulative Weight Percent Retained HOL-SR-90-59
35	500	0
45		0.2
60	25Ū	11.3
80	177	35.2
120	125	60.2
170	88	66.9
230	62	75.2
325	44	79.6
< 325	< 44	100.0

\*Material as received from Holston at Picatinny Arsenal. Determinations made at both Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory and Picatinny Arsenal. Constituent material RDX/TNT, 60.77/39.29 wt %.

IABLE 4	
---------	--

### Thru/on RDX Ammonium Nitrate Range (Microns) Coarse Fine 20/35 500-800 34 250-500 35/60 5.6 42 23.4 60/80 24 177-250 125-177 80/120 26.0 50 63 88-125 120/170 10.1 30 35 62-88 170/230 9.3 44-62 15 7 230/325 6.6 < 44 325/PAN 19.0

\*Values are shown as sieve fractions. For RDX these are converted from cumulative particle size distribution data on samples of Cyclotol cast at Picatinny Arsenal as part of this program. For AN these are direct measurements on samples taken from material used in making Amatex compositions. The arrows and brackets combine sieve fraction (e.g., for RDX, 5.6 wt % on a U. S. Standard Sieve-60 Mesh).

## Particle size distributions\*

The ammonium nitrate designated by the letter T in the plan of tests (Table 2) was pulverized using a hammer mill from high-density prills (MIL-A-50460) procured from Terra Chemical International, Inc. in an uncoated version. The material designated C in the test plan used ammonium nitrate pulverized from the Stengel process type manufactured by Commercial Solvents, Inc. The AN's were dried before and after pulverizing. The pulverized material was vibration screened through U.S. standard sieves. The coarse, nominally 20/60, indicates that it is the part of the pulverized material which passed through a number 20 U.S. standard sieve but was retained on a number 60 sieve. In the same sense, the fine, nominally 80/230, is the fraction which passe: 'hrough a number 80 sieve but was retained on a 230 sieve. The third material, designated medium, contained equal parts by weight of the other two. Further sieve measurements were conducted on these fractions to establish the distribution that really existed. This was necessary because fractionation by sieving is not totally effective. The results are shown in Table 4. It can be observed there that residual fines existed in both the coarse and fine materials.

## Loading of Cylinders with Explosives

Each composition was individually prepared in a preheated jacketed kettle and poured into the cylinders designated for that composition. Each copper cylinder was fitted with a base plate and a steam jacketed riser tube extending the explosive mix column 12". Heating of the cylinder was achieved through heat transfer from the riser. Mixture temperatures and cylinder temperatures were recorded for each pouring. Pouring temperatures varied from 178°F to 190°F, the latter for the more viscous melts. Typical measurements along the copper cylinder at the time of pouring were 185°F near the iser, 150°F halfway down, and 130°F near the bottom. A more uniform temperature can be achieved by using a thermally insulating jacket on the copper cylinder and a preheated base plate.

It was recognized from the start that the use of ammonium nitrate introduced severe problems with respect to moisture absorption. For this reason the pulverized ammonium nitrate was sealed and kept under heat and vacuum insofar as possible until introduced into the melt. The various compositions required were achieved by using Cyclotol 60/40 and adding the appropriate weights of TNT and ammonium nitrate for the designated mix. The order of introduction into the kettle was TNT, then Cyclotol, and lastly ammonium nitrate.

The kettle was held under vacuum for 15 to 20 minutes before pouring into the cylinder. Because the more viscous mixes were thixotropic manual vibration had to be used. After the mixes were poured heating of the riser was maintained for four to six hours. Then the source of heat was turned off and the mix was allowed to solidify overnight.

The following day the riser tube was removed and the loaded cylinder was sent to the Machine Shop for removal of the explosive riser section. Sequential sawcuts were made on the explosive riser, leaving a protrusion of approximately 1/16". This was later removed by "steam platen ironing," which process was also applied to the base. TNT was used where required as a filler. This process serves to provide an additional moisture seal of the ammonium nitrate in the composition and assures a smooth plane contact surface. The thin-wall and thick-wall cylinders were filled from the same melt, one immediately after the other. In addition to pouring into the 36" long cylinders, an additional 4" high cylinder (the section cut off during machining) was also loaded when enough mix was available. After cooling this 4" high section of explosive was removed from the short copper cylinder and used for control tests.

The copper cylinders were each sealed in a moisture barrier container after removal of the riser tube. They were taken out of the containers only for subsequent operations such as machining.

## Controls

Before commencing this series of tests sample pieces of copper taken from 1" and 2" ID copper cylinders used for cylinder tests by Lawrence Livermore Laboratory had been obtained. These samples were examined with respect to longitudinal and transverse microstructure and their microhardness was measured. Three end pieces of the 4" ID cylinder of each wall thickness were selected at random and subjected to similar tests. Table 5 presents the results of these measurements. In general the thickand thin-wall tubes appear to be similar in surface appearance, microstructure, and hardness and somewhat harder than the samples of the smaller diameter tubes.

The results of the cylinder tests must be interpreted with respect to the density, composition, and voids incorporated in the castings. To obtain an indication of the extent to which the latter was included in the casting each of the loaded copper cylinders was radiographed. Although some voids and cracks were noted, no correlation was later found in such results as wall-breakup pattern that could be traced back to these defects.

Ĩ

Knoop microhardness and Rockwell F ( $R_{\rm F}$ ) hardness for copper tubes

Hardness

			Avei	age	Mini	unu	Maxi	шпш	Rang	9
Wall	Sample No.	Section	KHN	a <sup>#</sup>	KHN	۳ <mark>۳</mark>	KHN	۲ <sup>۲4</sup>	KHN	R H
Thick	A5	Long.	65.4	*	59.3	*	75.8	65.2	16.5	*
		Trans.	77.2	66.7	62.7	*	102.2	82.6	39.5	*
	<b>A</b> 15	Long.	76.9	66.2	63.2	*	100.0	81.5	36.8	*
		Trans.	64.4	*	44.2	*	81.0	69.2	36.8	*
	<b>A</b> 17	Long.	67.9	57.8	60.4	*	81.2	69.5	20.8	*
		Trans.	70.6	61.0	64.4	*	82.6	70.7	18.2	*
Thin	<b>B</b> 2	Long	71.2	61.5	62.6	*	80.0	69.0	17.4	*
		Trans.	66.6	*	60.7	*	76.6	66.0	15.9	*
	<b>B8</b>	Long.	82.5	70.5	75.0	64.7	88.7	74.8	13.7	10.1
		Trans.	76.6	66.0	64.4	*	93.3	77.7	28.9	*
	<b>B10</b>	Long.	70.9	61.3	61.1	*	81.0	69.2	19.9	*
		Trans.	74.0	64.2	64.3	*	78.0	6, 2	13.7	*
1" Tube	(ITT)	Long.	75.7	65.3	67.4	57.2	88.1	74.5	20.7	17.3
		Trans.	83.3	70.9	70.0	60.8	98.5	80.3	28.5	19.5
2" Tube	(TTT)	Long.	82.2	70.3	58.4	53,9	97.6	80.1	29.2	21.2
		Trans.	69.0	60.0	58.1	*	78,4	67.6	20.3	*
*Below	applicable rant	86		1						

; *1* 

Ę

1

i

:

Core samples were obtained from the section of the riser closest to the top of the cylinder. This was considered to indicate the condition at the top of the cylinder. Core samples were also obtained from the separate 4-inch-high cylindrical castings previously described. Because of their short height these were considered to be indicative of the conditions at the base of the cylinder. In addition the density was obtained for the total 36" sample by weighing the copper cylinders before and after loading. The core samples described above were used as a basis of density and composition determinations. The results obtained from these determinations are given in Tables 6 and 7. Table 6 shows that the composition at the top of the cylinder, as indicated by the riser results, is RDX rich and TNT deficient. Bleeding out of TNT at the interface between the copper cylinder and riser tube had a strong effect. This bleeding will be corrected in future work by incorporating a sealing gasket in the riser tube. The 4" cylinder is closer to the nominal composition. Some TNT deficiency may be observed again for Amatex compositions in Table 7 (see under "Riser"). Note, however, that as TNT decreases in the Amatex compositions, part of the deficiency is compensated for by ammonium nitrate. Density results for the Cyclotol 60/40 in Table 6 show the higher density associated with the 4" casting and the lower associated with the riser region.

Densities in Tables 6 and 7 may be compared with computed maximum values using the compositions provided therein and densities of 1.82, 1.65, and 1.73 for RDX, TNT, and AN respectively. For Amatex 42/36/22 and 21/36/43 the computed values are 1.736 and 1.718 respectively. For these assumed compositions, one calculates from Table 7 that the 36" densities for Amatex 40 range from 92.7 to 95.1% of computed maximum values and for Amatex 20 from 91.2 to 93.3%. Percent values will be lower for densities in the riser section and higher for the 4" casting. It has been supposed that the latter most closely approximates the region of cylinder expansion observed by the streak camera.

## Safety Considerations

It has been known for many years that ammonium nitrate can react with copper to form a salt (Tetrammino Cupric II) nitrate, which is reputed to have a sensitivity in the range of primary explosives (Ref 8 and 9). This was a matter of great concern since an accidental initiation of a cylinder containing 30 pounds of secondary explosive would lead to a most serious accident. The relevant reference was studied in great detail and additional inquiries were made. It was quickly established that there was no danger associated with the loading of the cylinder, i.e., formulating the

	Cyclotol cor	nposition and	density measur	ements
	g	composition M	easurements (No	ominal 60/40)
	Ris	er <sup>1</sup>	4" Cast	ing <sup>1</sup>
	PA	LASL <sup>3</sup>	PA	LASL <sup>3</sup>
Thick	69.0/31.1	70.0/30.0		
	70.2/29.8		62.2/37.8	61.4/39.1
			64.2/35.8	62.6/37.4
Thin				

Thin

66.1/34.0	64.1/35.9
65.6/34.5	

## **Density Measurements**

	R	iser <sup>1</sup>	4" Cas	ting <sup>1</sup>	36" <sup>2</sup>
	Water	Mercury	Water	Mercury	
Thick	1.687	1.678			1.692
	1.656	1.676			1,694
			1.707	1.700	
			1.703	1.692	
Thin	1.691	1.679			1.694
	1.692	1.688			1.694

<sup>1</sup>Three pellets from riser section adjacent to cylinder or from base of casting into a 4" high thick-wall cylinder from same melt

<sup>2</sup>From overall net weight and volume of 36" long loaded cylinder

<sup>3</sup>Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory results on samples furnished by Picatinny Arsenal. PA heading on results obtained at Picatinny Arsenal on other samples from the same sources (i.e. riser, etc.)

TABLE	7
-------	---

	Ama	atex composition and	density n	neasurements	_
	R	iser <sup>1</sup>	4" Ca	asting <sup>1</sup>	36" <sup>2</sup>
	Density	Comp	Density	Comp	Density
		Amatex 40, Nominal	40/40/20	(RDX/TNT/AN)	
Coarse	1.563 1,589	42.7/35.6/21.8 42,4/35.8/21.8			1.642 1.647
Medium	1.528	41.6/36.9/21.5	1 679	40 4/20 4/20 2	1.639
	1.563	42.7/35.7/21.7	1.0/3	40.4/35.4/20.3	1.651
Fine	1.531	42.9/35.7/21.5	1 670	40 0/40 2/10 7	1.629
	1.561	42.3/36.6/21.2	1.0/2	40.0/40.3/19./	1.623
Fine*	1.557	42.5/36.4/21.1	1 660	40 9/20 E/10 7	1.612
	1.535	41.5/37.8/20.8	1.003	40.5/53.0/15./	1.609
		Amatex 20, Nominal	20/40/40	(RDX/TNT/AN)	
Coarse	1.490	490 20.8/36.4/42.9		10 6/40 2/40 1	1.579
	1.502	21.7/33.7/44.7	1.004 19.0/40.3/40.1		1,587
Medium	1.543	20.9/36.3/42.8			1,603
	er 94				1.602
Medium*	1.519	20.0/38.7/41.3			1.566
	1.543	20.6/38.5/41.0	1.624	19.5/41.2/39.4	1,574

<sup>1</sup>Three pellets from riser section adjacent to cylinder or from base of 4" casting from same melt

۲ ,

· · · · ·

Ś

<sup>2</sup>Overall net weight and volume of 36" long loaded cylinder \*Pulverized Stengel type ammonium nitrate instead of pulverized prills. Upper and lower values of each pair are for thick- and thin-wall cylinders respectively.

mix in steam-heated open kettles posed no problems and at Picatinny no copper kettles or pails were used. However, ammonium nitrate and copper in the presence of moisture forms copper nitrate, which is the first step in the formation of the salt.

Since there would be ammonium nitrate and copper it was essential that the moisture content of the ammonium nitrate be reduced to an absolute minimum and the low level be maintained after loading the mixes. As stated earlier, the ammonium nitrate was dried prior to pulverizing and was kept in a dry state and vacuum heated and directly inserted while still hot in the rest of the mix. All of these steps were judged to have reduced the ammonium nitrate moisture concentration to a minimum value. After copper nitrate formed, the formation of the tetrammino cupric nitrate salt would require air, moisture, and a period of time exceeding two weeks and most likely of the order of months. The precaution was taken of moving as quickly as possible once the cylinders were loaded to have them radiographed and inserted in barrier bags which were evacuated and hermetically sealed.

It should also be mentioned that the cylinders were regularly inspected for evidences of blue corrosion products. In one case such products were found on the bottom and traced back to the presence of water used to clean the loading area. These were carefully removed and replaced with TNT in the ironing process. Although all these steps represented reasonable precautions, a final inspection was made by reopening a barrier bag on the sample that had shown some corrosion and been repaired just prior to shipment. The bags were reopened immediately on arrival at the testing site and another examination made for evidences of corrosion. Such monitoring was continued throughout the test period.

In the DISCUSSION section there is presented an alternate approach to conducting cylinder tests with copper cylinders on mixtures containing ammonium nitrate. For improved safety it is recommended that this method be followed in the future.

## Experimental Arrangement at Field Site

٢

The experimental arrangement is shown in Figure 3. The key points to be noted are that a double slit was used with a streak camera to record both the expansion and the end breakout on a single streak record. In addition simultaneous framing camera photography recorded the run-up



द्

i+ \*



and the expansion and breakup of the copper cylinder over the length surrounding the slit. These pins record the closing of the circuit between the copper cylinder and each pin as the initial wall expansion occurs at each pin position. Not shown in Figure 3 are the sets of pins used to record the passage of the detonation wave. Each set, located as shown in Figures 1 and 2, consisted of a ring holding six pins at each position. Thus a measurement from one position to the next would consist of six numbers representing the times of transit between corresponding pins on the circumference of the cylinder at each pin position. These pins were mounted in a plastic ring. Early framing camera photographs indicated that the mass of the plastic was adequate to induce early rupture of the copper cylinder during expansion. This led to the change in pin positions from those in Figure 1 to those in Figure 2. In this way the disturbance-free expansion time at the slit was maximized.

## RESULTS

## Pin Data

For each cylinder a set of pin data was obtained consisting of reference measurements of the spacing between pins and arrival times. Table 8 shows results for the case of Cyclotol 60/40 in a thick-wall copper cylinder. The pin spacings were measured in inches. The pin times are quoted in microseconds, representing the first displacement of the wall at the pin positions. From this data the velocities between corresponding pins are calculated (shown in millimeters per microsecond in Table 9. Numbers in this table are serial numbers of pins, not their position in explosive diameters.

Table 10 shows the mean value of propagation velocity in meters per second and the corresponding standard deviation of the individual pin span values (such as presented in Table 9) for Amatex composition studies. The pin positions are now expressed in terms of explosive diameter. Since the explosive diameter was always four inches, 1 to 2 can be simply interpreted as four in these to eight inches and 2 to 8 as eight to thirty-two inches. All measuremeters were made from the initiation end of the 36" long cylinder. Note the redundancy in that we have pin positions at 1, 3/2, and 2 diameters, but calculations for the spans 1 to 3/2, 3/2 to 2, and also the combination span 1 to 2. This last calculation was done to reduce the standard deviation in the region preceding the slit position.

1

r

## A typical set of pin data (Cyclotol 60/40, thick-wall cylinder)

					Pin Spacir	gs (ir	iches)					
1-7	3.999		7-13	4.000	13-19	4.00	0 19-	25	12.001	25-3	1 4.0	04
2-8	3.597		8-14	4.000	14-20	4.00	0 20-	26	12.004	26-3	2 3.9	86
3-9	3.996		9-15	4.004	15-21	4.00	0 21-	27	12.003	27-3	3 4.0	00
4-10	3.999		10-16	3.999	16-22	4.00	3 22-	23	11.999	23-3	44.0	03
5-11	4.000		11-17	3.997	17-23	4.00	2 23-	29	11.996	29-3	5 3.9	96
6-12	3.998		12-18	3.998	18-24	4.00	5 24-	30	12.003	30-3	6 3.9	94
				Arriv	val Times at	Pins	(microsec)					
1 34	.7807	2	47.5774	13	60.3819	19	73.3406	25	111.9803	31	ł	
2 34	.8353	œ	47.5792	14	60.4527	20	73.3887	26	111.9980	32	124.959	0
3 34	.7343	6	47.4921	15	60.4092	23	73.3209	27	111.9758	33	125.100	6

. .

 34
 124.9630

 35
 124.9972

28 111.9422
29 111.9671
30 112.0422

73.2555 73.3006 73.3778

22 23 24

60.3326 60.3396 60.4269

16 17 18

47.4473 47.5030 47.5449

10

34.7244 34.7346 34.7728

-----

11 12

ഗാ

124.9669

36

ų

ł

;

;

------

and in

# Propagation velocities (mm/ $\mu$ sec) calculated from Table 8 (Cyclotol 60/40, thick-wall cylinder)

ME	8	61	'5	33	[2	000	0469
IT ON	7.8349	7.7408	7.8087	7.7895	7.8491	5.00	7.8
25-31	16-32	27-33	23-34	29-35	30-36	" N	" W
7.88891	7.89710	7.88712	7.87802	7.88016	7.88519	6.0000	7.88608
19-25	20-26	21-27	22-23	23-29	24-30	" N	= W
7.84029	7.85405	7.86883	7.86790	7.84282	7.85482	6.0000	7.85478
12-19	14-20	15-21	16-22	17-23	18-24	Ш З	= W
7.93471	7.89218	7.87340	7.88298	7.90893	7.88303	6.0000	7.89587
7-13	8-14	9-15	10-16	11-17	12-18	" "	" W
7.93756	7.96646	7.95579	7.98360	7.95714	7.95086	6.0000	7.95857
1-7	2-8	3-9	4-10	5-11	6-12	" Z	= W

7

S = .042451116

.006802764

။ လ

S = .012027260

S = .022486773

S = .015488808

N = No. of measurements

**M** = mean velucity

S = standard deviation of individual values about the mean.

NOTE: The fourth set of data from the left provides the velocity for the slit position at which streak data were obtained on the radial expansion of the cylinder.

ų,

1

!

÷

---\* ...

4

-----

-----

ļ

ie N

Propagation velocities (m/sec) and deviations (N = 6) from pin data

Díameters	1/2 - 1	1 - 3/2	3/2 - 2	1 - 2	2 - 8	. 8 - 8 1/2
		Amatex 20/40	)/40 (RDX/TNT/.	AN)		
Coarse	6821 (35	6943 (52	6972 (13)	6962 (29)	6947 (4)	6935 (22)
	6847 (38)	6887 (84)	7061 (103)	6967 (18)	6964 (3)	6955 (31)
Medium	7053 (28)	70 <b>4</b> 9 (10)	7088 (9)	7068 (9)	7029 (4)	7037 (19)
	7027 (27)	7027 (26)	7078 (56)	7053 (18)	7029 (10)	6975 (109)
Medium*	6940 (23)	7009 (20)	7085 (13)	7046 (7)	7030 (7)	7091 (27)
	6956 (25)	7013 (29)	7042 (25)	7029 (15)	7055 (9)	7070 (22)
		Å <b>matex 40/4</b> 0	)/20 (RDX/TNT/.	AN)		
Coarse	7404 (74)	7527 (71)	7582 (22)	7554 (32)	-	-
	7431 (39)	7547 (41)	7526 (38)	7537 (13)	7545 (5)	7558 (21)
Medium	7457 (66)	7466 (22)	7564 (33)	7515(12)	7570 (3)	7544 (50)
	7442 (57)	7581 (37)	7567 (37)	7574(14)	7585 (2)	7578 (21)
Fine	7339 (77)	7464 (56)	7475(23)	7470 (31)	7554 (4)	7602 (46)
	7259 ( <b>4</b> 1)	7398 (54)	7442(50)	7420 (14)	7558 (8)	7580 (38)
Fine*	7419 (59)	7468(6)	7506 (17)	7492 (13)	7499(6)	7548(43)
	7343 (43)	7410(30)	7552 (39)	7480 (25)	7504(3)	7501(22)

25

This mix used purverized and screened blenger process AN Other mixes used pulverized and screened high-density AN prills. Upper line of each set is for the thick-wall cylinder, lower is for the corresponding thin-wall (27"). Standard deviations are for six sets of pins spaced around circumference of cylinder, cylinder. Positions are in multiples of explosive diameter (4") measured from the initiation end of the 36" long cylinder. The slit position of the streak record was at 6.75 diameters not for cylinders. Only one cylinder corresponds to each line of data above.

Ş

:

くれいず

the second second second second second

Table 10 provides the data for examining the change in velocity with propagation distance, particle size, and wall thickness. If one examines for each horizontal line of data the two extreme left and right values, one observes that in almost every case they are either the same or there has been a small increase in velocity with the propagation. However, if one examines the last three columns to the right, it appears a reasonable conclusion that the velocity across the slit position was constant within the experimental error. This conclusion permits making comparison of the parameters of the experiment at the slit position as is done in Table 11. The latter also includes an estimate (see Tables 6 and 7) of the composition and density at the slit position. One can draw the following conclusions from Table 11:

a. The experimental reproducibility was measured using Cyclotol 60/40, the most uniform explosive. The detonation velocities of the two thin-wall cylinders differ by only 7 m/sec and of the thick-wall cylinder by only 14 m/sec. It follows that variations in observed detonation velocity for Amatex compositions may be attributed to the parameters involved.

b. The Amatex 40 and Amatex 20 velocities are lower, as shown near the bottom of the table. Substituting 20% and 40% ammonium nitrate for corresponding amounts of RDX in the Cyclotol leads to reduction in detonation velocity to 95 and 88.7% of that of the Cyclotol 60/40 (for loading densities achieved, which are close to anticipated production values).

c. There is no significant difference in velocities with respect to the wall thickness.

d. For Amatex 40, there appears to be no effect due to AN particle size within experimental error. (Note that this composition contains only 20% AN, that AN particle size variation was limited (Table 4), and that the density data (Table 7) is not sufficiently consistent to support density corrections to the detonation velocities (Table 11). At best, the latter corrections would lead to a very small (66 m/sec) effect for fine particle size.

e. In Amatex 40, for fine ammonium nitrate made from Terra source material the detonation velocity is higher than those for the Stengel process source material. No reason is known for this result and it may very well be due to variation in loading or density or composition.

		Detonation veloci standard deviati	ities and pin m on (N = 6) at 9	easurement slit position		
	Cyclotol	60/40	Amatex 40	0/40/20	Amatex 2	0/40/40
AN	Thick	Thin	Thick	Thin	Thick	Thin
None	7886 (7)	7900 (7) 7907 (5)				
Coarse				7545 (5)	6947 (4)	6964 (3)
Medium Medium*			7570 (3)	7585 (2)	7029 (4) 7030 (6)	7029 (10 7055 (9)
Fine Fine*			7554 (4) 7499 (6)	7558 (8) 7504 (3)		
Avg/SD/ (N-1)	7898/1	0.7/2	7545/3	2.3/6	7009/43	0/5
D <sub>re</sub> 60/40	100%		95%		88.7%	
Composition	62/38		41/38/;	21	20.5/38/	41.5
Density	1.70		1.65		1.61	
*Stengel AN			1			

D<sub>re</sub> 60/40 Thick and thin headings refer to the two wall thicknesses of the copper cylinders. refers to the detonation velocity expressed as a percent of that for Cyclotol 60/40

ş

アス・イン ううもいしょう

うちょう しいま かかうせい おうしかい しろう うくうちゅうちょう かんのうちょう しゅうちょう しょうどう かくしゅう しゅうしょう

43

TABLE 11

. .

14.2

\$ 3

, ,

۶... ۲

-

**.**,

27

f. For the Amatex 20 composition there is a slight increase in velocity associated with the change from coarse to medium particle size.

g. For Amatex 20 there is no change associated with the source of the ammonium nitrate.

The overall conclusion supported by this data in consideration of the fact that only single cylinders existed for each condition is that insofar as detonation velocity is concerned there is no significant effect due to particle size for the range used (see Table 4) or between the sources of the pulverized ammonium nitrate. However, there is a distinct effect' on detonation velocity associated with the change in the quantity of ammonium nitrate substituted for RDX in Cyclotol 60/40. Detonation velocity was about 5% lower for Amatex 40/40/20 and about 11% for Amatex 20/40/40.

## Radial Expansion of Cylinder at Slit Position

A schematic of a streak record is shown in Figure 4. Superimposed on the figure are designations for various regions in which coordinate data is recorded by means of a magnified projection of the original film. The coordinates are entered directly onto IBM cards in such a way that they can be furnished to a computer for subsequent analysis. Such data was obtained for each of the cylinders. It should be noted that the streak photograph provides two expansion records top (= right) and bottom (= left), one for each side of the cylinder. These records are not always of equal value. If a cylinder wall rupture occurs, the subsequent section of that expansion record cannot be used. Hence the analysis makes primary use of averages in the region where both sections are valid, but continues (with an overlap) with only one section when necessary. The data was carefully examined point by point and with use of framing camera records to limit data presented here to valid ranges.

The second point to note is that the original data is in the form of position, i.e., displacement of the cylinder wall, versus time. However, although this relationship is of interest in studying the effect of parameters, a greater interest exists in the wall velocity at particular expansions of the wall. To obtain wall velocity data, the expansion data is fitted by polynomials of various degrees; that polynomial with the best fit (smallest residual) is selected for further use in generating other relationships. The selected polynomial displacement versus time is differentiated to obtain the velocity. To get the velocity at a particular distance the time for



## Legend

- A Still Picture; shows allignment fixture with scale and slit orientation on side and end of cylinder.
  - B Run-up or zero motion part of trace.
- C First metal motion or "Jump-Off" of cylinder wall.
  - D Record of cylinder wall expansion.
    - E Cylinder wall rupture or jet.
- F Trace of cylinder end detonation front breakout.

## Fig 4 Streak photo obtained from cylinder test

「「「うう」」を、「ある」を、また、いたい

च्र

I

that distance is first found from the fitted polynomial by a root-finder routine and then that time is inserted in the differentiated polynomial to get the velocity. In all cases, a seventh, eighth, and ninth degree polynomial were tried and the seventh degree polynomial was found to provide the best fit.

To further define the region of validity of the data and of the use of the polynomials, original data and the polynomial fits were used to provide (through the computer and graphic outputs) plots of position, velocity and acceleration versus time. These were then examined with respect to region of realistic behavior of acceleration curves and with respect to concurrence of top (right) and bottom (left) results. The mass of data and the computer printout of the treatment of that data is too large to be included in this report but is available from the authors for examination by those directly involved in the subject. In addition to the treatment described above direct differentiation of the numerical data was tried and found not productive. Fitting of the data by "splines" was recognized as another approach but was not used. It is believed that the results to be presented would not be altered by a change in treatment of the data.

## Effect of Parameters on Cylinder Expansion

The pertinent data is the velocity achieved as a function of time and displacement. The time factor gives a measure of the rapidity of the expansion whereas the velocity provides a measure of the energy transferred to the metal. The presentation is made in two tables, Table 12 is devoted to the thick-wall cylinders, and Table 13, devoted to the thin-wall cylinders. The displacements presented here may be divided by four to achieve corresponding displacement for the standard one-inch cylinder test. In that test a displacement of 19 millimeters represents a volume expansion of approximately seven-fold, and a displacement of 5 millimeters represents a volume expansion of approximately two-fold. The corresponding displacements to be used here are 76 and 20 millimeters. The full data is presented to facilitate studies on the non-ideal behavior of ammonium nitrate.

For thick-wall cylinders (Table 12) it is immediately obvious that the velocity decreases as RDX is replaced by ammonium nitrate. No significant difference appears to exist for Amatex 40 results or Amatex 20 results with respect to the particle size or source of the ammonium nitrate.

21

## Preceding page blank

وكعبد

٢

• : • ..... -4 ł

「、 丶

	(°H - H)	I	1								
				Cyclo	tol 60/4	(RDX/	INT)				
	1	1.103	1.232	1.316	1.380	1.461	1.534	1.608	1.645	1.692	ł
	هو. ا	8.283	11.699	14.830	17.792	23.412	31.412	44.120	53.950	70.740	ł
AN				Amatex	40/40/20	(RDX/T	'NT/AN)				
	n	1.058	1.179	1.264	1.327	1.414	1.491	1.557	1.587	1.629	1
Coarse	فم ا	9.104	12.67	15.94	19.03	24.85	33.10	46.19	56.36	73.77	
	n	1.055	1.185	1.262	1.311	1.382	1.464	1.523	1.558	1.595	ł
Fine	مہ :	8.945	12.50	15.76	18.87	24.81	33.23	46.55	56.93	74.70	ł
	n	1.051	1.197	1.268	1.313	1.401	1.454	1.527	1.568	1.608	ł
Fine**	4	9.137	12.67	15.91	19.01	24.90	33.34	46.74	57.07	74.67	ł
				Amatex	20/40/4	(RDX/	TNT/AN)				
	a	0.995	1.121	1.206	1.266	1.344	1.410	1.472	1.508	1.548	1.573
Coarse	ب	9.632	13.40	16.83	20.07	26.18	34.88	48.74	59.47	77.78	93.16
	ย	0.993	1.119	1.206	1.269	1.351	1.420	1.481	1.517	1.561	1.582
Medium	به	9.791	13.57	17.00	20.23	26.32	34.96	48.73	59.39	77.57	92.83
	n	1.016	1.128	1.215	1.276	1.354	1.415	1.469	1.509	1.564	1.573
Medium**	ىم	9.330	13.02	16.41	19.60	25.66	34.30	48.15	58.90	77.09	92.36

,

Ş

. . .

4 I

32

77

Cylinder expansion data for thin-wall cylinders

٦

	(R - R)*	ωI	입	16	20	<u>28</u>	<del>8</del>	8	<u>76</u>	104
	)		Cyc	slotol 60,	(40 (RD)	(TNT)				
First	<b>п</b> .	1.513	1.686	1.797	1.873	1.975	2.075	2.148	1	: :
Cylinder	÷	6.428	8.920	12.11	13.39	17.04	23.40	32.03		•
Second	n	1.533	1.705	1.806	1.878	1.986	2.083	2.175	2.210	2.271
Cylinder	<b>ب</b>	6.292	8.753	11.03	13.20	17.33	23.14	32.51	39.80	52.32
AN			Amate	× 40/40/	20 (RDX	/TNT/AN	6			
Coarse	ส	1.480	1.641	1.727	1.811	1.910	1.995	2.143	2.322	ł
	**	6.771	9.321	11.69	13.80	18.09	24.23	33.93	41.11	ł
Medium	ק	1.489	1.657	1.752	1.812	1.906	2.000	2.109	2.153	!
	÷	6.847	9.377	11.72	13.87	18.17	24.30	34.02	41.52	
Fine	n	1.446	1.610	1.721	1.800	1.903	1.991	2.077	2.119	2.167
	ىم	6.546	9.156	11.56	13.83	18.14	24.29	34.10	41.72	54.79
Fine**	a	1.477	1.638	1.709	1.754	1.856	ł	ł	ł	ł
	rt	6.948	9.525	11.91	14.22	18.66	;	1	ł	ł
			Amate	x 20/40/	40 (RDX	/TNT/AN	(1			
Coarse	ŋ	1.350	1.512	1.617	1.689	1.783	1.874	1.983	2.040	2.092
	ب	7.473	10.26	12.81	15.23	19.83	26.38	36.73	44.53	58.07
Medium	Ę	1.390	1.554	1.652	1.721	1.825	1.928	2.020	2.040	ł
	<b>ب</b>	7.632	10.34	12.83	15.35	19.85	26.23	36.33	44.20	ł
Medium**	ב	1.391	1.582	1.690	1.711	1.808	1.911	2.005	2.019	2.058
	ىم	7.192	9.872	12.31	14.65	19.19	25.64	35.81	43.75	57.52
a - a) +	) is dianlare	ament in	millime	IL BLA	is veloci	tv of ont	side of i	cvlinder	in mm/r	nicrosec.

33

,

\*(K - K<sub>0</sub>) is displacement in minimeters, u is velocity of outside of cyninder an minimuted of and t is corresponding time in microseconds measured from first wall motion at slit position. \*\*Stengel process ammonium nitrate.

Ę

A similar examination of the data in Table 13 for thin-wall cylinders again shows the difference associated with the substitution of ammonium nitrate for RDX. The data for Cyclotol 60/40 which was replicated by the use of two thin cylinders shows excellent agreement, suggesting that any differences are associated with the explosive itself. Examination of the data shows no significant effect due to particle size of the ammonium nitrate. It is important not to be misled by a difference appearing only at a single displacement. The data with respect to the source of the ammonium nitrate is limited due to rupture of the thin-wall cylinders.

In Table 14 the relative energy transmitted to the copper for equal initial explosive volume, using as reference Cyclotol 60/40 is shown for Amatex 40 and Amatex 20 with variations according to the parameters of the experimental design. The values are given only for the 76-millimeter wall expansion, which corresponds approximately to a seven-fold explosive volume expansion over the loading volume, and the 20-millimeter wall displacement, which corresponds approximately to a two-fold volume ratio. These numbers were obtained simply by squaring the velocity values in the previous two tables at the stated displacement and then taking the ratio to the corresponding Cyclotol values and transforming this to percent. Examination of the data in Table 14 supports the conclusion that the substitution of 20% and 40% of ammonium nitrate for a corresponding quantity of RDX reduces the kinetic energy in the metal to about 91% and 84% of that for Cyclotol 60/40. Examination of the data for Amatex 40 suggests that there may be a very slight effect due to particle size when one goes to the fine particle fraction. Note that only 20 parts of AN are present in Amatex 40 and that the particle size range of AN in these experiments is limited (see Table 4). Note also the individual densities of the compositions (Table 7). In the Amatex 20, which contains 40 parts of ammonium nitrate, it was not possible to use fine ammonium nitrate due to viscosity limitations. One can only conclude therefore, that particle size had no effect on metal acceleration in going from coarse to medium ammonium nitrate. In both cases pulverized ammonium nitrate with the particle sizes used did not appear to have any dependence on the source of the ammonium nitrate. Examination of the data from all the displacements leads to the same conclusion.

The ratio of wall velocity (or square thereof) for a thin-wall cylinder to that for a thick-wall cylinder as a function of displacement depends on the energy release rate of the explosive involved and the mass per unit length of the explosive and of the cylinders. Table 15 shows this ratio for

Relative energy (%) in copper for equal initial explosive volume referred to Cyclotol 60/40\* (RDX/TNT)

		Amatex 4	0/40/20*	Amatex 20	/20/40*
Displacement	(mm)	<u>20</u>	<u>76</u>	<u>20</u>	<u>76</u>
AN	Wall				
Coarse	Thick Thin	92.47 93.29	<b>93.</b> 07 **	84.16 81.14	84.04 85.21
Medium	Thick Thin	 93.39	 94.91	84.56 84.25	85.C4 85.21
Medium***	Thick Thin			85.36 83.27	84.15 83.46
Fine	Thick Thin	90.25 92.16	89.70 91.93		
Fine***	Thick Thin	90.53 87.51	90.86 		
Avg		91.37	92.09	83.79	84.52

\*These are nominal compositions. The actual values are given in Table 7. Mean compositions (and densities) were by weight percent RDX/TNT/AN: Cyclotol 62/38 (1.70), Amatex 41/38/21 (1.66), and Amatex 20.5/38/41.5 (1.61). Individual densities have not been used to try to adjust the data to an equal density basis with respect to the AN particle size parameter.

\*\*Value here would be erroneous due to wall rupture. Full curve must be used for comparison.

\*\*\*Stengel process AN (others from Terra prills).

Blank space indicates data for these conditions as not part of plan of tests whereas a dash (--) indicates data not available for indicated comparison.

Ŭ,

Í

Gurney\* 1.699 1.703 1.701 1.718 1.707 1.709 1.711 1.724 1.712 1.725 1.720 for thin to thick wall. The expression is part of the 1.805 1.793 1.799 1.805 1.850 1.808 1.730 1.801 1.809 2 ł ł ł G 1.329 1.803 1.816 1.860 1.815 1.860 1.963 1.846 1.838 8 ł ł ł --1.844 -1.830 1.849 1.820 1.766 1.811 1.837 1.791 1.8441.824 1.822 읛 ! Amatex 40 Amatex 20 ω Cyclotol 1.848 1.838 1.825 1.836 1.897 1.785 1.760 1.819 1.824 1.783 1.789 8 80 1.842 .852 1.847 1.862 1.885 1.774 1.840 1.780 1.838 1.806 1.829 1.801 2 œ 1.878 1.859 1.869 1.860 1.840 1.856 1.867 1.798 1.876 1.919 1.862 1.864 18 60 1 + 0.5 C/M 1.916 1.873 1.895 1.938 1.846 1.930 1.905 1.820 1.929 1.926 1.832 1.897 밁 •0 C/M Displacement (mm) Number of Values (all explosives) \*The ratios of **Overall Avg** Medium\*\* Medium COATSS Coarse Fine\*\* Fine **Av**s Avg Avg

Ratios of wall velocity squared for thin- to thick-wall cylinders with the same explosive

36

Gurney formula for cylindrical geometry. Overall net weights of explosive and copper of each 36" long cylinder were used for each C/M.

Ş

\*\*Stengel process AN (others from Terra prills).

Cyclotol, Amatex 40 and 20 as a function of wall displacement. Note that the ratio decreases as the displacement increases with the same numerical trend for both Amatex 20 and Cyclotol overall: Cyclotol, 1.895 to 1.799; Amatex 20, 1.892 to 1.801. Cyclotol as an ideal explosive is considered to undergo an "instantaneous" transformation to equilibrium products releasing its energy within the detonation zone. The absence of a difference between Amatex 20 (40 parts AN) and Cylotol suggests that within the variance of the experiment there is no late release of energy by the AN. The significance of this behavior is treated further in the DISCUSSION.

In Table 15, the last column to the right provides the ratio of wall velocity squared for the thin- to thick-wall cylinders as calculated using the Gurney (Ref 10) expressions (see footnote to Table 15) for initial fragment velocities. For Cyclotol, which is an ideal explosive, the ratio at 76-millimeter displacement obtained experimentally does not coincide with the Gurney values, presumably because metal acceleration is not complete. It is reasonable to expect that the thin-wall cylinder is closer to its asymptotic velocity value than is the thick-wall cylinder. Hence, as the displacement continues, the wall velocity squared ratio should decrease further. The ratios for the Amatex compositions are too far from the Gurney values to permit any comparison that would provide information on the non-ideality.

## Cylinder Wall Deformation and Rupture

In addition to obtaining a record of cylinder expansion at the slit position by a streak camera the expansion and rupture of each cylinder were recorded by a framing camera as the detonation progressed within the explosive. The photos presented in Figure 5 are typical of the results. They represent selected frames for five cylinders and also show in the upper right hand corner a still of a cylinder. This still photo corresponds to the configuration shown schematically in Figure 1. At the slit position there is mounted a fixture holding a mirror which is used for alignment purposes. Four pin-holding Lucite rings can be seen to the left and two to the right of the fixture. There is a barrier at each end to prevent smoke from the shot obscuring the region of interest. One can see the bare end of the explosive at the right and the plane wave generator at the far left. The cylinder is supported in the wood frame shown during the test. The photo to the left of the still is this cylinder as it expands during the propagation of the wave. The slit position is to the left of the pin holder seen in the photo. Off to the left can be seen the remains of the adjacent three pin bills rs. The two photos just below, i.e., in the center of the figure, are for Amatex 40 with fine ammonium nitrate taken from pulverized

こうこうへ くろうていい

とうない、ないことを、うなのの、ノ

prills of the Terra Company (Mix 9 of Table 2). The two photos at the bottom of the figure are for Amatex 20 with ammonium nitrate of medium granulation from the same source (Mix 4 of Table 2). All the photos on the left side are of thick-wall cylinders and those on the right side are of corresponding thin-wall cylinders. All four lower photos have the wave front in approximately the same position along the cylinder. It is immediately apparent by the angles of divergence that the thin-wall cylinders expand to a greater extent in the same time frame. They also rupture at smaller expansions. All of the photos have been thoroughly examined and corroborate this statement. In the DISCUSSION section the possibility of change in wall thickness is treated. The center and lower photos had the arrangement of pin mountings shown in Figure 2, which is why the disrupted mountings are farther to the left. The bright region along the contour of the deformed cylinder is believed to be a reflection from the surface of the cylinder from the front lighting argon candle and the turning mirror (see Figure 3). No corresponding phenomenon is observed in the streak photographs. In future test programs it is believed this can be removed by placing a diffusing screen close to the cylinder, between it and the argon "candle." The center photo on the left displays a grid of black painted lines added as an experiment to observe the utility of such lines. They were not used in any analysis.

## **Wave-Front Profiles**

The surface of the explosive farthest from the initiation was also viewed by the streak camera by imaging a slit running vertically through the axis of the explosive across this explosive surface. The experimental arrangement was previously described and shown in Figure 3. Presented in Figure 6 are the results for the thin-wall cylinders. The numbers correspond to the mix numbers in Table 2. Because the thin-wall results are essentially identical to those of the thick-wall, only the thin-wall data is given. In Figure 6, time is progressing downward; therefore the top or leading portion of each trace represents the first "break-out" of the detonation wave front, followed by the recording of the emergence of the full curved detonation front across the end of the cylinder. This curvature can be used, in principle, to study the nature of the detonation, a subject that has been left for future study. There is an additional feature found in these films. This is the existence of an optical precursor, which can be most clearly seen for Mix 4. As the first light appeared, it was followed immediately by a very short quenching after which the emission reappeared and continued. This optical precursor was not found for the Cyclotol mix



Framing camera photos of cylinder expansion (thick wall - left side; thin wall - right side; upper right - experimental arrangement) Fig 5

च्यु



Fig 6 Streak records of propagation wave breakout from end of explosive cylinders for various conditions (see Table 2)

द्

٦,

and was also not found for three of the other fourteen cylinders fired. It is not clear whether the optical precursor is associated with optical problems, the experimental arrangement, or is inherent in the explosive (Ref 11-15). It has been suggested (Ref 16) that the optical precursor consists of the first appearance of the detonation wave close to the surface viewed through the transparent TNT, followed by a quenching by the rarefaction upon arrival at the surface itself and then followed in turn by the viewing of the hot products for the balance of the Taylor wave. In the DISCUSSION section consideration will be given to other instrumentation which could be placed at the end of the explosive cylinder to further explore the nature of the propagation profile.

## **Computer Program Predictions**

In the INTRODUCTION section of this report the role of cylinder tests with respect to metal acceleration in munition applications was presented. Full exploitation of the cylinder tests on non-ideal explosives reported herein should include making calculations with the TIGER computer program of the "isentrope ratios" between the explosives tested for comparison with experimental results. It should also include attempting to obtain an appropriate description of the explosive for use in hydrodynamic computer programs such as SIN and HEMP. Studies of this type are underway in other laboratories as well as this one and will be made the subject of separate reports.

## DISCUSSION

## Design of Cylinder Test for Non-Ideal Explosives

## Cylinder Length and Pin Positions

The length of the cylinder is related to the need for disturbance-free expansion time at the slit position until the explosive volume has reached at least seven times the initial volume of the solid explosive. This disturbance-free expansion time is controlled by the rarefaction wave which follows in the explosive from the initiation end and by the rarefaction wave which starts from the terminal end back towards the slit after the detonation arrives at the terminal end. The maximum disturbance-free expansion time is obtained by equating these two times to find the optimum slit position. The calculation requires a knowledge of the detonation velocity, and

:41

of the sound speed and particle velocity in the expanding products. These are functions of the explosive under test and must be estimated. In addition, if the pin mounts are so massive as to introduce a perturbation in the flow, by causing cylinder rupture, or as to alter the cylinder expansion rate, it is necessary to use the pin position immediately preceding and following the slit to calculate the slit position. The disturbance-free writing time would be significantly shortened. (For future cylinder tests a design has been developed which reduces the mass of the pin mount to less than one-fourth of that used in these tests.)

From Table 12 we see that the disturbance-free expansion time required for Amatex 20 and 40 for a seven-fold expansion of explosive volume in a thick-wall cylinder  $((R - R_{0}) = 76 \text{ mm})$  was about 60 microseconds. A calculation of the disturbance-free expansion time over the full cylinder length, assuming constant values for rarefaction wave and particle velocities, gave 50 microseconds. Considering that rarefaction waves and particle velocities in the axial direction are slowed by the expansion it is believed that the necessary 60 microseconds of disturbance-free expansion time was readily achieved for the slit position used. Such calculations clearly indicate that the cylinder length required when a four-inch-diameter explosive core is evaluated must be at least 36 inches long.

From Table 13 note that only about 45 microseconds is required for expansion of the thin-wall cylinder to 76 mm. In the thin-wall cylinders, wall ruptures frequently occur and the mass of the pin mounts would have a far greater effect. Using the Figure 2 pin mount configuration for the effective length influencing disturbance-free writing time, a calculation with constant values of rarefaction wave and particle velocities gave about 35 microseconds. Since these constant values shorten the calculated time, however, as stated, and since a disturbance generated by the pin mounts would require a period of time to start, it is believed that the thin wall was also not affected by the pin mounts. Examination of the framing camera results for rupture of thin-wall cylinders and the corresponding streak records has shown no evidence to suggest any effect. However, one can not entirely rule out a second-order influence on the expansion. The problem of wall ruptures can only be reduced by using a thicker "thin" wall with either the 4 inch or larger diameter explosive.

In future tests the spacing of the pins must also be changed from that of Figure 2. It may be observed in Table 10 that the variance associated with propagation velocities determined from pin data had a large value when

the pin spacing between corresponding pins or between adjacent mounts was a half-diameter, that is, 2 inches. This variance was considerably reduced when the spacing between adjacent mounts was increased to one diameter, that is, 4 inches. However, the latter placed a pin mount too close to the slit position. It is believed that a compromise spacing of 3/4diameter would be adequate. In addition it is not necessary to have four sets of pins preceding the slit position. For the recommended 4-inchdiameter, 36-inch-long cylinder the proposed pin positions stated in diameters are 1/2, 5/4, 2, with the slit at 6 3/4, 8, and 8 3/4. With a redesigned pin mount providing negligible loading on the cylinder, one could also consider adding an additional pin position at 2 3/4 diameters.

## Diameter of Explosives and Wall Thickness of Cylinders

When scaled cylinder tests are done for two diameters containing ideal explosives, the radial dimensions are changed linearly (e.g. 1", 2", 4" explosive diameters correspond to 0.1", 0.2", 0.4" wall thicknesses and linear scaling factors are 1, 2, 4). It is indeed found that as long as one is not near a critical explosive diameter the radial expansion ratios  $(R - R_{\rm o})/R_{\rm o}$  and the corresponding times divided by their linear scaling factors are independent of initial diameter (see Ref 1, Table 1, for numerical example). Hence, measurements at a smaller diameter permit extrapolation of the results to a larger diameter. Additional experiments conducted at a larger diameter such as eight inches would be required to demonstrate whether scaling of results has been achieved. The practical difficulties associated with using such a diameter were sufficient to rule this out in this first series of tests. For non-ideal explosives this type of scaling would not be expected since one would expect significant energy release to occur behind the steady state detonation zone at a rate that depends on specific volume. With scaling not expected, the choice of diameter (s) for a cylinder test should be related to munition applications and to deriving information on energy release rates.

For the shells which are most important with respect to quantity used and potential for application of Amatex explosive fills the C/M ratios (see Table 1) are about 0.2 and the explosive diameters are not too far from the 4 inches used. However, the C/M for munitions does not represent a cylindrical configuration. The ratio for the central part of the munition (excluding base and noce metal and explosive in nose) would have a higher C/M. Hence the thick-wall cylinder (C/M about 0.4) is a better approximation to these munitions than Table 1 shows. For the bombs, the thin-wall C/M

ŝ

description derived from the cylinder test data of this report at both wall thicknesses can be used directly or in a computer program for calculations for the munitions listed.

The second objective of a cylinder test is to obtain research data which will give information about the non-ideality of the explosive in such a manner as to broaden the application of the data from the way in which the experiment was conducted. The 4-inch diameter was found adequate to rapidly achieve a steady state propagation velocity. Two wall thicknesses give information in two different time frames and may provide a means of verifying assumptions as to the basic mechanism leading to that non-ideality. The results for two wall thicknesses presented in Table 15 are considered in a later section for significance with respect to the nature of the non-ideality.

To increase the sensitivity of the cylinder test to obtain more useful research data, it would be necessary to go to shorter time frames. However, at smaller diameters with non-ideal explosives one encounters difficulties with critical diameter, initiation, and run-up distance. Keeping the 4-inch diameter but using thinner walls departs from C/M ratios of significance for munitions and leads to earlier wall ruptures than those already found marginal with the half-scaled value used in the tests. It would appear that some useful data might be obtained by adding to the thick- and thin-wall cylinders for 4-inch-diameter explosive described in this report, a 2-inchdiameter explosive with a thin wall cylinder which was scaled from the 4-inch thin wall used here. Success would depend on the factors enumerated and the nature of the non-ideal explosive.

At this point it becomes obvious that for further study it is more appropriate to conduct tests designed specifically for revealing the nature of the non-ideality rather than trying to extrapolate from cylinder tests. For example, one can use linear geometry where very thin plates are accelerated and study early energy release patterns.

On the basis of the above discussion, it appears that for non-ideal explosives the 4-inch thin wall (1/2 scale) configuration should be used in parallel with the conventional scaled 4-inch cylinder test. Larger explosive diameters should only be considered for those explosives where run-up detonation, critical diameter, and munition analogues make this necessary for meaningful results. For Amatex, no additional information on the nature of non-ideality can be hoped for by using larger explosive diameters; rather, specific experiments should be designed for that objective where appropriate.

Another possibility considered was to use aluminum instead of copper for the thin-wall case or even for both wall thicknesses. The problems envisioned with aluminum were chemical reactivity (with moisture leading to hydrogen evolution), inadequate ductifity leading to early rupture, and a shock velocity in the wall greater than the detonation velocity, causing a wall precursor wave. As noted earlier, the hazard for copper reaction with ammonium nitrate required special precautions and some precautions may also be necessary for aluminum. Insofar as ductility is concerned, highly ductile forms of aluminum are available and the lower density of aluminum permits thicker walls for the same C/M as when copper is used. The overall results could be fewer early ruptures in the thinwall case and the use of an even thinner wall in the cylinder test. However, the problem of the wall precursor for the Amatex explosives can not be ignored. The lowest propagation velocity measured was 6.8 mm/microsec. Using Hugoniot curves for the Comp B driver and the two metals, one calculates (for a one-dimensional case) maximum shock velocities of 5.4 and 7.4 mm/microsec for copper and aluminum respectively. Hence, aluminum cylinders would require a more precise resolution (perhaps by use of the HEMP program) of the possibility of a wall precursor.

## Instrumentation of Terminal Face of Explosive Cylinder

The arrival of the wave front at the terminal face of the explosive cylinder provided a measure of front curvature and an optical precursor.

The variations in curvature with change in explosive composition were sufficiently small as to presage difficulty in the use of this data for further interpretation. However, the streak records are of sufficiently high quality to permit precise numerical analysis and this will be considered separately in the future.

The observed precursor has been tentatively hypothesized to be an optical phenomenon rather than a manifestation of detonation zone structure. However, further investigation is necessary to establish the validity of this hypothesis. The original streak records and associated data are of sufficiently high quality to permit establishing details of the profile in the form of density on film vs time. This, together with interpretations, will be considered separately in the future.

The results referred to in the previous two paragraphs pose the question of optimum instrumentation of the terminal face of the explosive cylinder. The objective of such instrumentation is to provide information

on the structure of the detonation zone as a bonus of the cylinder test for non-ideal explosives.

The second slit used with the streak camera was inadequate to meet this objective. It could be improved by calibration of the film to convert density on the film to optical intensity. Use of narrow band filters over symmetrical parts of the slit might give information on particular spectral regions of interest and possibly lead to estimates of temperature profile. A vacuum environment would be needed to eliminate the air shock. Such time-resolving spectroscopy attempts are better done at higher turbine rates of the camera than are consistent with using the principal slit for cylinder expansion. Since use of the second slit still leaves almost the entire terminal face available, one can certainly consider other measurements (e.g., for pressure profile) that could be added to or used as a replacement for optical observation.

One or more miniature manganin gages (Ref 17) (gage rise time less than 25 nanosec, active area 1 mm sq) could be modified for plane-wave measurement to provide pressure-time from the front to gage disruption. The 1/8" (3 mm) inpedance-matched base permits pressure recording by the gage element for a comparable depth into the detonation zone. The overall dimensions of about an inch permit placing more than one gage on the terminal face of the explosive cylinder. The problem with these measurements is that special pulsed power supplies which require triggering must be used and that voltage measurements from the gage must be made with a high speed oscilloscope. The addition of such equipment to the already complex cylinder test instrumentation poses field site problems.

The peak pressure could be measured by the shock electric effect (Ref 18) which uses a stack of Lucite disks, with small gaps between them terminated by a metal plate. As the shock goes through the gap, ionization is picked up by the metal electrode and appears as a pulse on the scope. The initial velocity in the Lucite is obtained by extrapolation and is used to deduce the peak pressure at the Lucite explosive interface. Optical observation with the streak camera of the progress of the wave in the stack of Lucite disks is also possible. Another method uses an axially symmetric electromagnetic probe (Ref 19) to monitor detonation pressure and reaction zone length.

The velocity imparted to one or more "flyer" plates contacting the terminal surface of the explosive cylinder can also be measured by high

.46

speed camera techniques. The velocity reflects an integration over part of the pressure profile depending on thickness of the flyer plate.

In the next series of cylinder tests consideration will be given to using some of the described methods for the terminal face to see if any merit regular use for cylinder tests on non-ideal explosives.

## Loading and Assembly for Cylinder Tests

The technique used for loading the copper cylinders with explosives was direct casting into the cylinder. For some explosives, such as liquids or slurries, the direct casting method with vertical orientation for firing is the only way. For solid explosives one can first make a set of shorter castings, oversize in diameter, in a multiple mold. These are then remote machined to close tolerances and slip fitted into the copper cylinder. This method reduces the range of variation in explosive density and composition over the length of the cylinder but does result in a sawtooth function of these parameters and interfaces between cast sections. With proper attention to detail, prior availability of multiple molds, and precision remote machining capability this seems to be a preferable method. It also has the advantage that the explosive need not be in contact with the copper until shortly before the firings, thus eliminating hazards due to formation of (Tetrammino Copper II) nitrate. In addition machining eliminates any effects due to "ironing" with TNT.

On the other hand assembly of individual machined castings involves sliding friction and static hazards and should be done under an approved SOP. Disassembly in the event of change in plans or a misfire must be done remotely and involves, depending on the explosive, sufficient risk to merit remote destruction of the item as the only safe operation. Of course, steaming out the explosive, under an approved SOP, would salvage the copper cylinder, but lose the explosive charge.

The procedure used for these tests of casting directly at one location and shipping to a different installation for tests is not recommended. The entire operation should be done at one installation in the shortest time span possible. For slurries the time span may have to be shorter, with loading done at the test site to avoid segregation. The appropriateness of time of loading for slurries in relation to firing time and method of loading must be chosen with consideration of the manner in which the explosive would be used in practice.

## Costs of Tests

For each non-ideal explosive composition one would require at least two cylinders, one thick wall and one thin wall. Parameter variation within explosives (e.g., particle size) must be considered as generating additional explosives for evaluation. If one assumes that tests of many explosives are provided for jointly so that procurement, planning, testing, and overhead costs are reduced, a reasonable expectation of costs per explosive composition is listed in Table 16.

## Non-Ideal Explosives Containing Ammonium Nitrate

## Nature of the Non-Ideality

The cylinder tests on Amatex 20 and 40 have provided percentage decreases in detonation velocity and metal acceleration associated with substitution of AN for RDX. The results include cylinder expansion data and also indicate that the fraction of available energy released is approximately constant during the expansion phase. Various hypotheses on the nonideality of these explosives can be inserted in computer programs and the predictions compared with the experimental results. Such quantitative considerations are appropriate at this time.

One may immediately ask whether the results represent the full potential of the ammonium nitrate. To check this, calculations can be done for a Chapman-Jouguet detonation using computer programs such as BKW or TIGER and permitting all elements in the composition to fully react to equilibrium product species. Such calculations indicate that higher detonation velocities and metal acceleration could occur than has been reported herein or found in munition performance tests. Furthermore, the fact that the fraction of available energy released does not change during the expansion suggests that the energy release to the point achieved occurs early and then does not continue; i.e., "freezing" of scme intermediate composition products is occurring either in the detonation zone or in the early part (top 1/3 roughly) of the isentrope from the Chapman-Jouguet plane, This hypothesis makes it possible to rule out any continuing (non-freezing) process as the source of the non-ideality. Thus, diffusion limitation over the time span of the cylinder expansion is ruled out, but not as a mechanism participating in the "freezing." Experiments are needed to establish the nature of the early product compositions for explosives containing AN and the kinetics of the possible decomposition routines, including freezing of species. Computational efforts with TIGER using a variety of product

i

ų

## Estimated cost of non-ideal explosive cylinder test\*

Copper Tubes (2)	\$ 300
Machining Copper Tubes (2)	750
Explosive (1) (with pulverizing and screening)	250
Loading, Assembly and Quality Control (2)	1000
Field Site Firing (2)	2500
Analysis of Results (2)	500
Test Report	1000
Planning and Guidance	3000
Total	\$9300

## Total

\*Prorated for one explosive composition at 4" diameter, 36" length in one thick-wall and in one thin-wall copper cylinder. Values have been rounded and should be considered only as estimates appropriate to the 1972-73 time frame of costs. The (2) above is to stress that cost shown is for two copper cylinders (one thick, one thin wall).

hypotheses have not been successful to date but are continuing. Detonation calorimeter experiments re freezing (Ref 20) are being planned and experiments are under consideration, using time-resolved spectroscopy to observe propagation profiles of these explosives in transparent confinements and to observe combustions and detonations terminating in a vacuum chamber.

## Particle Size Distributions in Amatex Explosives

The finest sieve fraction of AN used was 80/230, which corresponds to 62 to 177 microns. This limitation was imposed by viscosity in casting. For larger quantities of AN as in Amatex 20 only half of the AN could be in this size range. It is of both theoretical and practical interest to know whether as the particle size of the AN is further reduced, the energy release properties are improved. For this purpose experiments on pressed compositions using much finer AN are required. Cast Amatex compositions could use finer AN by use of surfactants, removal of RDX fines, and using AN of spherical shapes with selected particle size distribution. The added cost would have to be considered in relation to the possible benefits.

## Significance of Results for Otner Ongoing Programs

The problems encountered in casting the Amatex compositions were communicated to those involved in interim type qualification studies and were useful in choice of particle size of the ammonium nitrate. The demonstrated independence of performance results on the practical range of particle sizes of ammonium nitrate for economical casting permitted a decision based on loading factors. The quantitative measure of degradation of detonation velocity and metal acceleration with substitution of AN for RDX has been valuable in discussions on the merits of alternate fills for munitions. The experimental modifications made for these cylinder tests of non-ideal explosives and the consequences have been communicated informally to other scientists doing related studies.

## **FUTURE WORK**

A second series of cylinder tests should be conducted to follow through on the suggestions made in this report for the optimum design of a cylinder test for non-ideal explosives. The non-ideal explosive(s) chosen for evaluation should again provide information for other ongoing programs and for understanding the nature of non-ideality. In this regard, consideration should be given to including a slurry-type explosive so as to encounter the new problems posed by this non-solid type. Further work should be done with the data provided by these experiments. These studies would include:

a. Comparison with TIGER and HEMP (or equivalent) computer program predictions and calibration of descriptions of the explosive.

b. Interpretation of curvature of wave emergence and precursor from terminal end of explosive.

c. Pursuit of hypotheses on the non-ideality of Amatex compositions.

d. Correlation with forthcoming (LASL, LLL) results on explosives containing ammonium nitrate and other explosives.

The availability of one dozen each of the thick-wall and thin-wall copper cylinders obtained as part of this program but not used and the experience gained in this study will sorve to reduce the cost of the future work described above.

## ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The authors wish to thank D. Hopper, S. Herzick, and G. Ziegler of Picatinny Arsenal for their suggestions in connection with the loading of the cylinders.

The authors also with to thank the following persons from the Pantex Plant, Mason & Hanger-Silas Mason Co., Inc.: I. B. Akst for his interest and many helpful suggestions; R. Ashcraft, P. Kramer, and J. Van Delkinburgh for their assistance with the computer data reduction and curve fitting programs. Especially acknowledged is the fine effort by the firing crew led by R. Linvile. The first author wishes also to make it a matter of record that the cooperation provided by the management and staff of Pantex Plant was outstanding leading one to look forward to future joint efforts.

It is a pleasure to acknowledge the access provided to methods and data on other cylinder tests by, and the stimulating discussions with, M. Finger, E. Lee, and H. Hornig at Lawrence Livermore Laboratory; C. Mader, B. Craig and A. Popolato at Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory; and M. Kamlet and S. Jacobs at Naval Ordnance Laboratory.

This program was conducted under the sponsorship of the JTCG/ALNNO Working Party for Explosives, Chairman R. F. Walker, whose encouragement is gratefully acknowledged.

## REFERENCES

- Kury, J. W., Hornig, H. C., Lee, E. L. McDonnel, J. L., Cornellas, D. L., Finger, M., Strange, F. M., and Wilkins, M. L., "Metal Acceleration of Chemical Explosives," Proc. Symp. Detonation, 4th, Office of Naval Research, Rept. ACR-126 pp 3-13, U. S. Govt. Printing Office, Washington, D. C., 1965
- Lee, E. L., Hornig, H. C., Kury, J. W., "Adiabatic Expansion of High Explosive Detonation Products," University of California Lawrence Livermore Laboratory UCRL - 50422, May 2, 1968
- Finger, M., Hornig, H. C., Lee, E. L., Kury, J. W., "Metal Acceleration by Composite Explosives," Proc. Symp. Detonation, 5th, Office of Naval Research, Rept. ACR-184 pp 137-151, U. S. Govt. Printing Office, Washington, D. C., 1970
- Slape, R. J., Crutchmer, J. A., "Modular Bomb Program Progress Reports," Jan - Feb 72, March - May 72 (with Blair, C. C.) and Dec 72 - Feb 73 (Conf.). Pantex Plant, Mason & Hanger - Silas Mason Co., Inc., Reports on MIPR F08635-0-000071 for U. S. Air Force. (These reports provide cylinder test results for H6, PBXW-107, 108, 109, AFX-103, 702)
- 5. Plauson, R. A., Mitchell, C. T., "Cylinder Expansion (Gurney Constant) and Warhead Fragmentation; Part I. Program Description," Naval Weapons Center NWC TP 5240, Part 1 (Conf.), October 1972. (This report contains data for PBXN 1-5, 101, 102 and PBXC-108, 113.)
- Popolato, A., Campbell, A. W., Hantel, L. W., Lewis, H. R., Salgado, P. G., Craig, B. G., "Properties of Amatex/20," LASL Report (to be published)
- 7. Giroux, E. D., "HEMP Users Manual," University of California Lawrence Livermore Laboratory UCRL - 51079. June 24, 1971
- 8. Phillips, A. J., "Study Properties of Tetrammino Cupric Nitrate," Picatinny Arsenal Technical Report 1302, June 28, 1943

- 9. King, A. W., "Sensitivity of Tetrammino Cupric Nitrate Complex," Informal Cont preation dated January 14, 1974 from DuPont of Canade Ltd. to Picatinny Arsenal
- 10. Sterne, T. E., "A Note on the Initial Velocities of Fragments from Warheads," Balistic Research Laboratories Report 648, Aberdeen Proving Ground, Maryland, Sept. 2, 1947
- 11. Paterson, S., "Source of the Light Recorded in Photographs of Detonating Explosives," Nature Vol 167, pp 479-481 (24 March 51) and "Light from Shocked and Detonating Powder," Vol 203, pp 1057-1059 (5 Sept 64)
- 12 Sultanoff, M., "A Model for the Description of the Luminous Events in Steady State Detonation of Pentolite Sticks," BRL Report 987, July 1956
- 13. Johansson, C. and Stearnhoff, L., "Suppressed Light Emission of the Reaction Zone in Detonution," Nature Vol 183, pp 247-248 (24 Jan 1959)
- 14. Johansson, C. H., "Emission of Light at Detonation of High Explosives," Explosivetoffe, <u>11</u> 251 (1963)
- 15. Blackburn, J. H. and Seely, L. B., "Source of the Light Recorded in Photographs of Shocked Granular Pressings," Nature Vol 194, pp 370-371 (28 April 1962); "Light Emitted from Shocked Granular Sodium Chloride in a Vacuum," Nature Vol 202, pp 276-277 (18 Apr 1964); "Detonation Light in Granular Explosives," Trans Faraday Soc 61 (507), pp 537-545 (1965)
- 16. Craig, B. G., Los Alamos Scientific Laboratory, Informal Communication.
- 17. Rosenberg, J. T., "Development of a Plezoresistant Transducer to Measure Stress-Time Output of Small Detonators," Stanford Research Institute Report SRI No. PYU:-1283, March 1973
- Hayes, B., "The Detonation Electric Effect," J. Appl. Phys. 38, No. 2, 507-511, Feb. 1967

- Hayes, B. and Fritz, J. N., "Measurement of Mass Motion in Detonation Products by an Axially-Symmetric Electromagnetic Technique," Proc. Symp. Detonation, 5th, Office of Naval Research, Rept. ACR-184, pp 447-454, U. S. Gov't. Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 1970
- Ornellas, D. L., Carpenter, J. H., Gunn, S. R., "Detonation Calorimeter and Results Obtained with PETN," RSI, <u>37</u>, 7, 907-912, July 1966; Ornellas, D. L., "The Heat and Products of Detonation of Cyclotetramethylenetetranitramine, 2,4,6-Trinitrotoluene, Nitromethane and Bis(2,2-dinitro-2-fluorethyl) formal," J. Phys. Chem, 72, 2390 (1968)